
Place Committee
Meeting Venue
Committee Room A - County Hall, 
Llandrindod Wells, Powys

Meeting Date
Friday, 2 October 2015

Meeting Time
10.00 am

For further information please contact

County Hall
Llandrindod Wells

Powys
LD1 5LG

Lisa Richards
01597 826371
lisa.richards@powys.gov.uk

25 September 2015

AGENDA

1. APOLOGIES PLSC12-2015

To receive apologies for absence.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST PLSC13-2015

To receive declarations of interest from Members.

3. DISCLOSURES OF PARTY WHIPS PLSC14-2015

To receive disclosures of prohibited party whips which a Member has been given in 
relation to the meeting in accordance with Section 78(3) of the Local Government 
Measure 2011.

(NB:  Members are reminded that under Section 78 Members having been given a 
prohibited party whip cannot vote on a matter before the Committee.)

4. MINUTES PLSC15-2015

To authorise the Chair to sign the minutes of the previous meeting.
(Pages 3 - 8)

Public Document Pack



5. HIGHWAYS, TRANSPORTATION AND RECYCLING PLSC16-2015

The Head of Service to provide an overview of current services and to discuss with 
Members any action being taken to influence the national agenda and legislation 
relating to Waste and Recycling.

WORKING GROUPS

6. WASTE STRATEGY REVIEW PLSC17-2015

To receive a scrutiny summary report.
(Pages 9 - 10)

7. TRANSPORT SCRUTINY REVIEW PLSC18-2015

To receive the notes of the Place Committee acting as Transport Review Group on 3 
July 2015.
(Pages 11 - 12)

8. ICT REVIEW PLSC19-2015

To receive a scrutiny summary report.
(Pages 13 - 14)

9. STREET LIGHTING REVIEW GROUP PLSC20-2015

To establish a group of Members to collate evidence as to what effect (if any) 
reductions in street lighting may have had on crime and accidents to assist Cabinet 
in making decisions regarding street lighting.  

10. WORK PROGRAMME PLSC21-2015

To consider the forward work programme and whether any additional items should be 
included.
(Pages 15 - 16)

11. CORRESPONDENCE PLSC22-2015

To consider any item of correspondence which, in the opinion of the Chair, is of sufficient 
urgency to warrant consideration.



 MINUTES OF A MEETING OF PLACE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE HELD AT 
COUNTY HALL, LLANDRINDOD WELLS ON THURSDAY 18 JUNE 2015 

Present: County Councillor R G Thomas (Chair)
County Councillors K Curry,  M Dorrance, D O Evans, V Evans, D C Jones, E M 
Jones, H Lewis, R H Mills, E T Morgan, G Morgan,  D R Price, G D Price, K S Silk, D 
H Williams and G Williams and S Williams 

In Attendance:  County Councillor W J Powell, Portfolio Holder for Environment and 
Sustainability

Officers: Simon Inkson, Head of Housing, Sarah Jowett, Senior Manager 
Regeneration and Property, Hugo Van Rees, County Farms Manager and John 
Forsey, Interim Joint Passenger Transport Manager

1. ELECTION OF VICE CHAIR PLSC1– 2015

RESOLVED that County Councillor E M Jones be elected Vice 
Chair for the ensuing year.

2. APOLOGIES PLSC2– 2015

Apologies for absence were received from County Councillors G G Hopkins, T J Van 
Rees and Professor I Roffe, Independent Member.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST PLSC3 – 2015

County Councillor H Lewis declared a personal interest in Item 7, County Farms 
Estate, but reminded the Committee that he has a dispensation from Standards 
Committee to speak on issues relating to County Farms.

4. DECLARATION OF PARTY WHIPS PLSC4 – 2015

There were no declarations of party whips.

5. MINUTES PLSC5– 2015

The Chair was authorised to sign the Minutes of the last meeting, held on 12 March 
2015, as a correct record. (Copy filed with signed Minutes.)

Notes of meetings of the Joint Chairs Steering Group held on 20 February and 13 
March were also circulated with the agenda.  The Chair drew Members’ attention to 
the adjustment to the Areas of Responsibility for the Committee.

6. HOUSING PLSC6 – 2014

The Committee received a presentation by the Head of Housing covering the 
following issues:

 Key Issues
 Context
 Restructuring

Page 3

PLSC15-2015



 Housing Act 2014
 Service Improvement Plan
 Appointment of Housing Scrutiny Champion

Discussion:
 Whilst an authority is not obliged to retain housing stock, if it does, that stock 

must be managed and maintained
 A new staffing structure and IT system were introduced in November 2104 

followed by a new allocations system
 Housing Management and Options Officers (HMOOs) have replaced Housing 

Officers, Rent Officers and the Prevention of Homeless Officers.  HMOOs 
each have a case load of approximately 200 properties to manage.  

 A number of short term issues are being resolved
 The Housing (Wales) Act 2014 places new responsibilities on the Authority 

and is more prescriptive.  Regional working with Carmarthenshire is ongoing
 De-pooling – charges for communal items in flats are to be charged 

separately.  Members expressed some concern that a standard charge, 
averaged across all properties, to tenants of flats would not incentivize 
tenants to maintain certain areas such as communal gardens.   There could 
be an opportunity for waiving charges if tenants assumed responsibility for 
grass cutting etc

 The Authority has exited the HRA regime at a cost of £72M – this will add 
£1.3m pa to revenue and give greater freedom to borrow.  Capital receipts will 
also be reinvested.  The authority will also be able to acquire and develop 
new housing accommodation.

 MAPPA – the Committee had previously had a response from the office of the 
Police and Crime Commissioner regarding scrutiny of MAPPA. 

 Renewable energy sources – a recent cabinet report into use of renewables 
had excluded the housing stock.  Air source heat pumps are being effectively 
used in off gas areas.  A range of arrangements was in place across the 
County for different heating types and these would be reviewed as 
appropriate

 The new IT system will allow the service to become paperless, improve 
customer access, and allow agile staff working.  Further developments will 
allow automated satisfaction surveys and overdue rent demands

 Fire risk assessments are to be carried out
 Definition of local connection in respect of Housing Allocations to be circulated
 Right to Buy – discussion to be had regarding requesting the Welsh 

Government to suspend right to buy as there is an undersupply of affordable 
housing.  A settled income stream is needed to support further borrowing

 Universal credit could pose a risk to the Authority – currently Housing Benefit 
is paid direct to the Council.  Under the new arrangements a tenant would 
have to be eight weeks in arrears before the Council can request that Housing 
Benefit is paid to the Authority.

 The Workforce Development Plan would be checked to ensure that 
appropriate training was in place to reflect the Authority as being Dementia 
Friendly

 Care and Repair deliver a significant proportion of adaptations and Disabled 
Facilities Grants

Page 4



Outcome:
 Further information be sought on the scrutiny of MAPPA, including the level of 

seniority of members, areas scrutinized and whether an Annual Report is 
produced.

  County Council should determine the opinion on Right to Buy
 All County Councillors to be made aware of housing needs in their areas
 A Scrutiny Champion for Housing would be appointed at the next meeting

7. COUNTY FARMS PLSC7– 2015

Documents:
 Report of the Portfolio Holder for Environment and Sustainability 

Issues:
 County Farm Estate Asset Delivery Plan had been updated and would be 

circulated to Members
 3 year rent reviews
 Levels of investment

Response:
 Traditional and new tenancies are subject to a 3 year review
 Increase in income of £20K has been achieved at reletting rather than 

increased rents.  The industry is not sufficiently strong to support large 
increases

 Tenants are concerned with the condition of the estate
 Capital investment is needed
 Some holdings do not meet Farm Assurance standards and may result in 

some holdings not being able to continue to maintain dairy herds
 It has been the case that dairy units had generated the largest rents but this is 

no longer the case
 Condition survey being undertaken and should be largely complete by 

December.  This will provide base data to determine a revenue and capital 
programme over the longer term

 Income from capital receipts has been diverted to the Schools Modernisation 
Programme with only 10% retained within the service

 Reinvestment is essential if the Estate is to progress
 Only £185K was available for maintenance and repairs in the previous 

financial year and this will reduce to £140K in the current year
 Members believe that a debate regarding the future of the Estate must be 

undertaken

Outcome:
 A further report to be given to the Committee in December 2015 by which time 

the condition survey will be nearing completion and the extent of the issue will 
be clearer

Page 5



8. PUBLIC TRANSPORT PLSC8– 2015

Documents:
 Report of the Portfolio Holder for Highways and Transportation 

Issues:
 Budget reductions have led to a review of public transport options
 Two options are being consulted upon
 Draft policy to be produced for local bus service provision

Responses:
 Planned budget reduction of £500K
 Methodology to evaluate services compiled
 Pre engagement consultation had been undertaken with five public interest 

groups including the Older Peoples Forum and Disability Powys
 Consultation period to close on 29 June
 New proposals to be implemented in November 2015
 Member Development Seminar 3 July 2015 to debate responses to 

consultation
 Moratorium on bus service improvement during consultation period

Outcome:
 Members of the Committee to meet to scrutinize the proposals on the 

afternoon of 3 July following the Member Development Seminar

County Councillor ET Morgan left the meeting at 12.40
County Councillor D R Price left the meeting at 12.55

9. SCRUTINY REVIEW GROUPS PLSC9 – 2015

i) Civil Parking Enforcement

Documents: 
 Cabinet Action Plan

Outcomes:
 That the Action Plan be accepted

ii) ICT Infrastructure

County Councillors S Williams and D R Price be appointed to sit with the 
Corporate Matters Working Group of the People Committee to consider the 
way in which ICT supports service improvement

10. WORK PROGRAMME PLSC10 – 2014

Documents Considered:
Page 6



 Work Programme

Outcomes:
 Highways and Transportation be invited to the next meeting to provide an 

overview of the service
 Waste and Recycling – a presentation to the Committee on action the Council 

is taking to influence the national agenda and legislation
  
11. CORRESPONDENCE PLSC11– 2015

There was no correspondence.

R G THOMAS
 CHAIR

Place Scrutiny Committee
18.06.2015      10.00 – 13.15 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Place Scrutiny Committee

2 October 2015

Waste Strategy

Purpose of Report:    Progress Report

The Group have met once since the last meeting of the Committee and scrutinized the 
current data regarding recycling.  Targets were met for July 2015 but projections suggest 
that the year end 58% recycling target may be more difficult to achieve.  It was noted that 
the data provided erred on the side of caution and that a number of measures were in hand 
to address any potential shortfall.  The Portfolio Holder informed the Group that the Welsh 
Government were actively assisting authorities to achieve targets rather than penalising 
those that failed, but there remained a potential, significant financial risk to the Authority in 
the long term if targets were not achieved.  The Group will continue to monitor quarterly 
management reports.
 
Recycling rates at two HWRCs had significantly improved following the letting of new 
contracts - there is a requirement that recycling rates of 75% be achieved in the first year, 
rising incrementally to 80% in five years.
 
The Group were briefed on a consultation exercise that had been undertaken with regard to 
introducing three weekly residual waste collections and the proposed communications plan 
to be put in place for the period leading up to the decision being taken by Cabinet and 
during the implementation period if a decision is made to proceed.
 
The Internal Audit Working Group of the Audit Committee had asked the Group to monitor 
the implementation of an Action Plan produced following an internal audit into Trade Waste 
completed in 2014.  The Group were satisfied that the Action Plan had been implemented.

Report contact: Lisa Richards, Legal, Scrutiny and Democratic Services

Contact details: 01597 826371, lisa.richards@powys.gov.uk

Sources/background papers: Notes of Working Group

Group Membership: County Councillor H Williams, (Lead Member), K Curry, G Hopkins D C 
Jones, E M Jones, R H Mills and K Silk.  

Page 9

PLSC17-2015



This page is intentionally left blank



 MINUTES OF A MEETING OF PLACE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE HELD AT 
COUNTY HALL, LLANDRINDOD WELLS ON THURSDAY 3 JULY 2015 

Present: County Councillor R G Thomas (Chair)
County Councillors K Curry, D O Evans, V Evans, E T Morgan, D C Jones, T J Van 
Rees

A Public Transport Seminar had been held prior to the Committee meeting as a 
scrutiny review group to consider responses to a consultation exercise regarding two 
options for future public transport delivery.

A good response had been received to the consultation but further comments were 
to be sent to the Portfolio Holder for final presentation to Cabinet.  It was agreed that 
individual Members would raise concerns regarding particular routes as appropriate 
but the Committee would address strategic issues.

The following points would be communicated to the Portfolio Holder:

 Consultation very much welcomed and Members pleased to note that 
responses have been considered

 Specific local comments will be raised by members as they see fit
 Revision of options following consultation welcomed
 Will Option 3 be subject to public consultation?
 Flexibility is essential
 Further work on integration of transport should continue
 A level of concern still remains that the more frequent services could be 

reduced slightly to protect some services from withdrawal
 Concern regarding how far the service can be cut before Welsh Government 

funding reduces
 25% of consultees were non bus users – as we move forward we must 

ascertain why more residents do not use bus services
 Welcome suggestion for improved marketing 
 Must encourage concessions to use their bus passes as it supports the 

service
 Whilst it is acknowledged that the decision whether or not to charge 16-19 

year olds for school/college transport is a political one, consideration must be 
given to the impact this may have on the viability of schools

 Grant to community transport providers – if additional providers are 
encouraged to operate services, will existing schemes lose funding and be 
less viable?

 Timetables and bus stops are not visible in a number of locations
 Essential to have planning over the longer term across services – an example 

of raising kerbs to accommodate access to buses that are now being removed 
was raised

Place Scrutiny Committee
03.07.2015      13.30 – 14.10 

Page 11

PLSC18-2015



This page is intentionally left blank



Place Scrutiny Committee

2 October 2015

ICT Review

Purpose of Report:    Progress Report

At the last meeting of the Committee, Councillors D Price and S Williams were appointed to 
join the Corporate Matters Working Group of the People Committee to review ICT.

A piece of work was being commissioned by the Strategic Director Resources which, it had 
been suggested, the Group should review in due course.  The results of this study have 
only recently been received by the Authority and are currently being validated.

Therefore, the Group has not met and it is now proposed that the findings of the review be 
presented to the joint Working Group at a later date.

Report contact: Lisa Richards, Legal, Scrutiny and Democratic Services

Contact details: 01597 826371, lisa.richards@powys.gov.uk

Sources/background papers: 

Page 13

PLSC19-2015



This page is intentionally left blank



25 September 2015

 PLACE COMMITTEE

Work Programme 2015/16

Chair Cllr Gwynfor Thomas
Vice Chair Cllr E Michael Jones

2 October 2015
Standard Items

 Minutes
 Joint Chairs Steering Group
 Work Programme

18 June 2015
5 May 2015

Lisa Richards
“
“

Policy Reviews


Scrutiny Review Groups
 ICT Review
 Waste Strategy Review
 Street lighting review

Progress report
Summary report
Establish working group

Lisa Richards
“
“

Other
 Highways and Waste Nigel Brinn

10 December  2015
Standard Items

 Minutes
 Joint Chairs Steering Group
 Work Programme

1 October 2015 Lisa Richards
“
“

Policy Reviews


Scrutiny Review Groups


Other
 Brecon Property Reorganisation
 County Farms update
 Crime and Disorder

Progress report

Half yearly review

David Bradley
Sarah Jowett
Fay Smith

3 March 2016
Standard Items

 Minutes
 Joint Chairs Steering Group

 Work Programme

5 December 2014 
14 November 2014, 20 
February 2015

Lisa Richards
“
“

Page 15

PLSC21-2015



25 September 2015

Policy Reviews


Other
 Crime and Disorder Half yearly report Fay Smith

16 June 2016
Standard Items

 Election of Vice Chair
 Minutes
 Joint Chairs Steering Group
 Work Programme

Lisa Richards
“
“

Policy Reviews


Scrutiny Review Groups


Other


Working Groups

Current:

ICT Review: Joint working group with the Corporate Matters WG of People 
Committee
Cllr D R Price
Cllr S Williams

County Farms: Cllr E A Jones
(on hold) Cllr E T Morgan

Cllr G Williams
Cllr R G Thomas
Mr J Brautigam (Lay Member Audit Committee)

 
 

Page 16


	Agenda
	PLSC15-2015 MINUTES
	PLSC17-2015 Waste Strategy Review
	PLSC18-2015 Transport Scrutiny Review
	PLSC19-2015 ICT Review
	PLSC21-2015 WORK PROGRAMME

